
 

 1 

LINKED MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, HELD IN THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING ON 

OCTOBER 22, 2013 AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

 

Present:  Dale Janway    Mayor 

   Paul C. Aguilar   Councilor 

   Nick G. Salcido   Councilor 

   Sandra K. Nunley   Councilor 

   J. R. Doporto    Councilor 

   Jason Shirley    Councilor 

   Richard Doss    Councilor 

   Janell E. Whitlock   Councilor 

 

Absent:    Judith E. Waters   Councilor 

 

Also Present:  Steve McCutcheon   City Administrator 

   Eileen P. Riordan   City Attorney 

   Annette Barrick   City Clerk 

   Monica Harris    Finance Director 

   Stephanie Shumsky   Planning, Eng., & Reg. Director 

   Luis Camero    Public Works Utilities Director 

   Thomas Carlson   Public Works Director 

   Richard Lopez    Fire Chief 

   Daniel Fierro    Police Chief 

   Patsy Jackson-Christopher  Director of CRC 

 

 

Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording is 

hereby made a part of the official record. 

 

0:00:00 Call Meeting to Order 

  

0:00:02 Invocation - Pledge of Allegiance  

 

0:00:39 Mayor Janway introduced Mr. Sam Plumlee the new City IT Director.  

Mr. McCutcheon explained that the City went on an extensive search for an IT Director.  He 

explained that the City was very pleased with the amount of applications and many very 

qualified candidates.  He explained that Mr. Plumlee was the closest fit to an individual with the 

experience that the City was looking for.  He added that the City is very pleased to have Mr. 

Plumlee join the Senior Executive Staff of the City and are very excited about the skills and 

knowledge that Mr. Plumlee brings with him.  He added that with his IT knowledge the City will 

be in better shape and moving forward in the very near future. 

 

0:02:16 Mayor Janway asked Chief Lopez to give an update on the Firefighter 

Combat Challenge in Las Vegas.  



 

 2 

Chief Lopez explained that the Combat team is in Las Vegas.  He said that the team has to run 

Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday to hold their spot.  He added that the Challenge will only 

take 64 teams on Sunday.    He explained that the Carlsbad Team qualified for the Scott's 

Firefighter Combat Challenge in Las Vegas by competing and taking first place in Carlsbad, NM 

and in Tyler, TX.  He explained the Team is trying to hold their ranking and take the title.  He 

explained that the Scott's Firefighter Challenge and added that it is called the hardest two 

minutes in sports. 

 

0:04:21 Mayor Janway introduced Familia Dental a new company opening in town. 

Ms. Alexis Pisana, Community Relations Coordinator invited everyone to the ribbon cutting and 

grand opening on Saturday, October 26, 2013.  She said that Familia Dental has been in business 

for six years in New Mexico.  She explained that the grand opening is a kid friendly event that 

will have a bounce house, cartoon characters, a Halloween costume contest, coloring contest, and 

pumpkin decorating.  She said the location is on Pierce Street in front of the Mall Cinema and 

there will be food and drinks provided.   

 

0:06:49 1.        APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

0:06:52 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Aguilar and seconded by Councilor Shirley to approve the 

Agenda. 

 

0:06:56 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto, Doss;  No 

- None; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

0:07:11 2.          CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 2013-49, A 

RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN BUDGETARY ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2013-

2014 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET  

Ms. Harris reviewed the revenues and expenditures making certain Budgetary Adjustments to 

the 2013-2014 Fiscal Year Budget highlighting the General Fund, Disaster Preparedness Fund, 

Municipal Transit Fund, Lodgers' Tax Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Airport Improvements Fund, 

Cemetery Fund, Sports Complex Fund, Water & Sewer Fund, RSVP Fund, CIEP Fund, and the 

Health Insurance Fund. 

 

0:13:03 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Nunley and seconded by Councilor Doss to approve 

Resolution No. 2013-49, a Resolution making certain Budgetary Adjustment to the 2013-2014 

Fiscal Year Budget. 

 

0:13:10 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto, Doss;  No 

- None; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

0:13:26 3.        ROUTINE AND REGULAR BUSINESS  

A.        Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on October 8, 2013          



 

 3 

B.        Personnel Report          

C.   Check Register and Bills          

D.        Purchasing:                  

1)  Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2013-57A and 2013-57B, to Power Ford, in the 

amount of $106,300 for one (1) ¾ Ton Crew Cab 4x4 Truck and Three (3) ¾ Ton 

Extended Cab 4x4 Trucks for the Double Eagle Water Department                  

2)  Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2013-57C, to Rich Ford, in the amount of 

$43,272 for Two (2) ¾ Ton Long Bed Trucks for the Street Department                  

3)  Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2013-57D, to Power Ford, in the amount of 

$80,448 for Three (3) ¾ Ton Long Wheel Pickups with Utility Body for the Electrical 

and Parks Departments                  

4)  Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2013-57E, to Power Ford, in the amount of 

$20,364 for One (1) ½ Ton Long Bed Pickup Truck for the Construction Department                  

5)  Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2013-57F, to Rich Ford, in the amount of 

$49,414 for Two (2) ¾ Ton Crew Cab Trucks for the Parks and Community Service 

Departments                  

6)  Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2013-57G, to Power Ford, in the amount of 

$25,862 for One (1) ½ Ton Extended Cab 4x4 Pickup Truck for the Planning, 

Engineering, and Regulation Department                  

7)  Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2013-57H, to Rich Ford, in the amount of 

$23,867 for One (1) Mid-Size 4 Door SUV for the IT Department                  

8)  Consider approval to Award Bid No. 2013-54, to C. D. General Contractors, Inc., in 

the amount of $393,651 for the roof replacement at the Riverwalk Recreation Center  

9)  Consider approval to Award RFP No. 2013-56, to Molzen-Corbin for engineering 

services regarding signalization at Canyon and Lea pending successful negotiation of an 

agreement                          

E.        Contracts and Agreements:       

1)  Consider approval of a four-year Lease Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and 

John Deere Credit for one (1) HX 15 Flex Wing Rotary Mower for the Airport                  

2)  Consider approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between the Eddy County 

DWI Program and the Carlsbad Police Department                  

3)  Consider approval of Agreement between the Carlsbad Fire Department, Carlsbad 

Police Department and Dr. Kim Lark, DO for the Medical Director Services          

F.        Set Dates: (November 26, 2013)                  

1)  To consider an Ordinance regarding a Zoning Change from "R-1" Residential District 

to "C-2" Commercial District for an approximately 1+/- acre site, located at 1412 N. 

Eighth St., pursuant to Section 3-21-1 et. Seq. NMSA 1978 and Sections 56-150(B) and 

56-140(I), Carlsbad Code of Ordinances          

G.        Monthly Department Reports:                   

1)  Culture, Recreation & Community Services Monthly Report for September 2013         

          2)  Carlsbad Fire/EMS Department Monthly Report for September 2013                  

3)  Carlsbad Police Department Monthly Report for September 2013          

H.        Board and Committee Appointments:                  

1)  Carlsbad Tree City Arbor Day Advisory Board:  Damien Armijo remainder of 4-year 

term                  



 

 4 

2)         City of Carlsbad Police Department's Citizen Advisory Board:  Robert 

Steinkamp, Ward 2, 4-year term                  

3)  Extraterritorial Zoning Commission:  Shauna Rogers; Steve Massey          

I.        Miscellaneous:                  

1)  Consider approval of recommendation from the City of Carlsbad Golf Course 

Advisory Board to amend Section C.5., regarding the Municipal Golf Course Dress Code  

 

0:13:48 Mayor Janway asked Mr. McCutcheon to explain the reason for all of the 

vehicles being purchased under Item D and to explain Item H.3 Extraterritorial Zoning 

Commission:  Shauna Rogers; Steve Massey.  

Mr. McCutcheon explained the vehicles were approved in the City's final budget.  He explained 

this represents all of the vehicles that will be bought this year.  He added that there are a couple 

of detective vehicles that have not been purchased.  He added that this will complete the vehicle 

purchases for the year.   

 

Mr. McCutcheon explained that Item H.3 is the Mayor's appointment to the Extraterritorial 

Zoning Commission (ETZ).  He explained that there has been quite a process on this particular 

Commission.  He explained that there is an Authority which is created and made up of a City 

Councilor and two County Commissioners.  He explained that the Authority is the ultimate 

authority in the County's ETZ.  He said that through the efforts of the  Mayor and some of the 

Councilors, Shauna Rogers and Steve Massey have both accepted the appointment and both 

bring considerable experience to the Commission.   

 

Mayor Janway thanked Councilor Whitlock and Councilor Shirley for all the work they have 

put into the ETZ process. 

 

0:16:45 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Shirley and seconded by Councilor Doporto to approve 

Routine and Regular Business. 

 

0:16:52 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto, Doss;  No 

- None; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

0:17:12 4.        CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A POLICY FOR NAMING FIELDS AT 

THE BOB FORREST YOUTH SPORTS COMPLEX  

Councilman Doporto explained that the Bob Forrest Youth Sports Complex Advisory Board 

drafted guidelines to have fields named after individuals from the community.  He explained that 

with the guidelines there would be a paper trail of accomplishments of the individuals that the 

fields are being named after.  He added that years from now, people will understand and know 

what the individuals did for the community. 

 

0:18:13 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Nunley and seconded by Councilor Whitlock to approve 

Policy for naming fields at the Bob Forrest Youth Sports Complex 

 



 

 5 

0:18:18 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto, Doss;  No 

- None; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

0:18:33 5.        CONSIDER APPROVAL TO RENAME THE SAN JOSE PLAZA, 

THE RAY ANAYA SAN JOSE PLAZA 

Mayor Janway recommended to Council that the San Jose Plaza be renamed to honor the 

memory of one of Carlsbad's outstanding citizens, Ray Anaya.  He said that Mr. Anaya was a 

pioneer in the Civil Rights arena of the area.  He explained that Mr. Anaya broke down many 

barriers, among them being elected the first Hispanic Sherriff of Eddy County.  He added that 

Mr. Anaya was a juvenile probation officer and had a great affect on many young lives in our 

community.  He said that it is fitting that the Park be named in his memory because when you 

think of the Park and the 16th of September celebration, you think of Ray Anaya and "El 

Grieto".   

 

0:19:47 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Aguilar and seconded by Councilor Salcido to approve 

renaming San Jose Plaza, the Ray Anaya San Jose Plaza. 

 

0:19:51 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto, Doss;  No 

- None; Absent - Waters; The motion carried.. 

 

0:20:29 6.        CONSIDER REQUEST BY PAT WILBURN, APPEALING THE 

CARLSBAD PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DECISION APPROVING A 10' 

FRONT-YARD SETBACK VARIANCE FOR 13 LOTS LOCATED WITHIN THE 

FUTURE FOUNTAIN HILLS SUBDIVISION - PHASE 10, LOCATED ON THE WEST 

SIDE OF MIEHLS DRIVE, ZONED R-R  

Mr. McCutcheon explained that the City received a letter from Mr. Thurston withdrawing his 

request for the 10' front-yard setback variance and agreeing to stay with the standard ordinance 

setback of 30'.  He explained that the withdrawal does away with the request for the variance and 

the need for a public hearing.   

 

Ms. Riordan explained that with the withdrawal of the variance by Mr. Thurston there is no 

appeal of the variance to be heard. 

 

0:21:53 A member of the audience asked if the withdrawal includes all of the 

variances.  

Ms. Riordan explained that only one of the variances was appealed and that is the 10' front-yard 

setback variance.   

 

Ms. Shumsky explained that the Planning and Zoning Commission considered three variance 

requests from Mr. Thurston.  She explained that the Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of all three.  She explained that she only received an appeal on one of the 

three variances, which was the setback variance.    

 



 

 6 

Councilor Doporto asked if there was still time to appeal the other two variances.  Ms. 

Shumsky explained that the appeal period is 15 days from the decision and that time has passed.   

 

Councilor Nunley asked what the two variances that passed were.  Ms. Shumsky explained that 

one of the variances is to construct a new road and the variance requested for the right-a-way 

width to be reduced from 60' to 42'.  She explained that Mr. Thurston requested a variance to 

reduce the pavement from 28' to 24' which was granted. 

 

0:24:10 Mayor Janway asked if anyone in the audience has any questions.  

Mr. Hauser said that there were three variances, where does the appeal come in.  He said that 

Mr. Thurston had to come before Council to get the variances approved.     

 

Ms. Riordan explained that under City Code the variances requested could be approved by the 

Planning and Zoning Commission and all three were approved.  She explained that if any side 

involved wanted to appeal, the appeal would then come before Council.  She explained that only 

one of the decisions was appealed.  She explained that the other two decisions were final when 

Planning and Zoning made them and they were not appealed.   

 

0:25:29 Mr. Carson explained that he was at the August 5, 2013 Planning and Zoning 

Commission meeting and was told that the Commission makes recommendations to 

Council, not final decisions.  

Mr. Carson explained that the reason he is present tonight is because he expects the City 

Council to make the decision because that what he was told.  He explained that if he was 

misinformed, it’s the fault of the Planning and Zoning Commission.  He added that he truly feels 

that he was misinformed and that he did not get an adequate opportunity to express his opinions 

and asked the Council to reconsider the approval of the other two variances until he and the 

others present have the opportunity to speak their opinion.   

 

Ms. Riordan explained that Ms. Shumsky by state law is required to send out a notice of 

decision in which she did.  She added that the notice includes a brief statement about the steps to 

appeal. 

 

0:27:25 Ms. Shumsky gave a brief recap explaining that Mr. Thurston approached 

the Planning and Zoning Commission for approval of three variance requests.  

Ms. Shumsky explained that there was substantial neighborhood opposition to the requests. She 

explained that the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled the items to a subsequent meeting 

that took place in September.  She explained that prior to the September meeting Mr. Thurston 

had modified his request in response to the neighborhood concerns.  She explained the 

modifications made were to increase the width of the right-a-way, and he increased the street 

paving to be more in alignment with the City's requirements.  She explained that he continued to 

request the 30' set back variance.  She explained that in September the Commission reconsidered 

all three of the variance requests.  She explained that there was still significant neighborhood 

opposition to the variances.  She said that the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended 

approval of the three variances.  She explained that the City's regulations require that the 

Planning Department send the applicant and any interested party that sends a request in writing, 

notice of decision which indicates that there is a 15 day appeal period.  She explained that 



 

 7 

several of the neighborhood residents came into her office with questions and concerns and she 

informed them of the 15 day period.  She said that Mr. Wilburn was the only person that 

submitted an appeal in writing.   

 

0:30:05 Mr. Wilburn explained that he did not receive any information from the City 

that a variance had been granted.  

Mr. Wilburn said that if he had known the variances were approved he would have appealed the 

other two variances.  He said that he feels there are problems that the City is still not aware of.  

He added that one of the issues is the water pressure; he said that the water pressure is below 30 

pounds.  He explained that if another 13 houses are added the water pressure will be lower.  

 

0:31:37 Mr. Mark Friend, a resident of Miehls Drive, said that he did not receive the 

letter stating that the variances were approved.  

Mr. Friend explained his concerns and issues:  

- Sewer system  

- Water pressure 

- Bicyclists 

- Walkers  

- Drivers  

- Police activity  

- Traffic 

He asked if the City really thought this through, is it all about money, and he said he never 

received the letter and if he had received it he would have appealed the variances.   

 

Ms. Shumsky said that there is some confusion to the letter that the residents are referring to.  

She explained that the City requires the applicant to send notification of any variance requests of 

all property owners within 100 feet.  She explained that in the packet is a list of all the property 

owners notified of the request by the applicant.  She explained that the notice of decision is sent 

to the applicant informing them of the decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission.  She 

said if anyone is interested to receive a copy of the notice of decision, they must submit a written 

request in writing.  She added that Mr. Thurston withdrew the set back request and there will be 

a 30' set back as the City requires. 

 

0:37:19 Mr. Aragon asked with all the issues, would it not be in the Council's 

authority to restart the process, so everyone will have a chance to be heard.   

Mr. Aragon added that most people do not understand the process.  He explained that if it is in 

the Council's purview to oversee the Planning and Zoning Commission, it should also be in the 

Council's purview to start the process over.   

 

Ms. Riordan explained that the process is spelled out by state statute.  She explained that just as 

the current residents have rights so do the owners of the other property and possible developers.  

She explained that the City can not override the property owner’s rights or the residents and the 

process was intended to balance those rights.  She explained that at this point the City can not 

override the process to override Planning and Zonings decision is the appeal process.  She 

explained that as far as the due process application, Council would not hear the matter unless it 

has been appealed within the timeline and that time has passed. 



 

 8 

0:39:10 Councilor Doporto explained that the decision can be appealed through 

District Court. 

Councilor Doporto said that he would like to see the Ordinance come back to Council and make 

the change to state that Council has the final say.  He explained that he does not feel that the 

Planning and Zoning Commission should make the final decision on variances.  He added that he 

feels it is the responsibility of the Council to hear the variances.  He said that having a lot of 

developers on the Planning and Zoning Commission creates a conflict of interest and the 

community sees that and it should change. 

 

0:40:28 Mr. Rick Porter explained that he would like to make certain that what is 

done is in the best interest of the City, County, and the pedestrians.  

 

0:42:44 Councilor Whitlock asked Mr. Wilburn why he chose to appeal only one of 

the variances.  

Mr. Wilburn explained that he did not understand the system.  He explained that he chose that 

one because it is a safety issue.  He added that he also feels like Mr. Thurston used the variances 

to divert the attention from the real issues.  He explained that building the houses on 75' lots is 

going to change the integrity and character of the neighborhood.  He said that Mr. Thurston’s 

motive is to make money and the motive of the neighborhood is also economic, to protect what 

they each have invested in their property.  He added that he is not proposed to progress and he 

knows that Carlsbad needs housing but at what cost. 

 

0:45:07 Councilor Doporto explained that the City is in beginning stages of working 

on a project for trails due to all of the foot traffic in the area.  

Mayor Janway said that the engineering is taking place now and the trial will go from the High 

School to the Artesia Highway. 

 

0:46:00 Mr. Oran Means said that Mr. Thurston never used the variance as a ploy.   

Mr. Means explained that Mr. Thurston is a good builder and has built more homes than most 

contractors in Carlsbad.  He said that Mr. Thurston tries to build to fit the area and he knows 

what he is doing. 

 

0:47:40 Mr. Bob Blundale explained that there will be no synergy at all between the 

existing homes and the proposed subdivision.  

Mr. Blundale explained that several homeowners in the area petitioned the Council to require 

bigger lot sizes to be mandated for the new homes to continue the overall flow of the area. 

 

0:49:03 Mr. Kent Thurston, son of Ken Thurston, reviewed the issues and concerns 

of the neighborhood.  

Mr. Thurston explained that putting in jogging path has been discussed with the City.  He said 

that he has put up a good faith offer that he would pay half of the cost for the jogging trail.  He 

said that he and his father are trying to beautify Carlsbad.  He explained that the City has also 

completed a water pressure check on the area.  He said that the as a developer, he can not control 

the speed of drivers in the area, that is a police concern.  He explained that the 30' set back will 

remain in place.  He explained that the quarter acre lot size for the development meets City code 

and will match some of the existing properties. 



 

 9 

0:53:22 Mr. Friend explained his concerns about the safety and integrity of the 

neighborhood and future plans of the area.  

 

0:56:46 Mr. Wilburn said that the plat shows that Mr. Thurston is going to build 13 

houses and asked what lots 9 to 13 would contain.  

Mr. Thurston said that as his dad Mr. Ken Thurston says, tell me I can not do something and I 

will do it.  He said is it tough to build on “yes”, is it buildable “yes”.  He explained that if they 

have a customer that is interested in the lots and would like to build on them, yes they will build 

on them. 

 

0:57:34 Mr. Max Carson said that he walks the hill two to three times per week and 

said that drinking and speeding is the problem in the area and something needs to be done 

about it.  

 

1:00:05 Mr. Barney explained that he understood that the three variances were 

appealed.  

Mr. Barney explained that if there is any way the Council can do something about the variances 

he urges the Council to get together and do something.  He said that he just built a home in the 

area and his home will have cost him two to three times more than the new homes will be sold 

for.  He said that he realizes that Council can not reverse the decision but he does encourage the 

Council to visit the safety issues. 

 

1:01:28 Mr. Thurston explained that today he is representing the development 

Company and will sell the lots to whomever is interested in purchasing them.  

Mr. Thurston said that they do not have to be the builders for the lots and if anyone is interested 

they can purchase a lot and have the house to their own specification.   

 

Mr. Friend challenged Mr. Thurston and Mr. Means to sign a piece of paper stating that they 

will not build spec homes in the area and put the agreement in the newspaper.   

 

1:05:54 Mr. McCutcheon said that he understands the passion of the neighborhood, 

but procedurally at this point, the Council can do nothing on the appeal.  

Mr. McCutcheon explained that Council is governed by the Rule of Law and the City 

ordinances have been met.  He explained that the item objected to has been withdrawn and the 

next appeal for the neighborhood would be to District Court. 

 

1:06:34 7.        CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 2013-50, A 

RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN CITY PROPERTY TO BE OBSOLETE AND 

UNUSABLE  

Mr. McCutcheon reviewed the items and explained that this is the standard resolution to 

lawfully dispose of obsolete and unusable City property. 

 

1:07:26 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Whitlock and seconded by Councilor Shirley to approve 

Resolution No. 2013-50, a Resolution declaring certain City property to be obsolete and 

unusable. 



 

 10 

1:07:31 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto, Doss;  No 

- None; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

1:07:49 8.        CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF TEMPORARY HOUSING 

REGULATIONS, APPROVED BY THE CARLSBAD PLANNING AND ZONING 

COMMISSION AS A FORM OF TEMPORARY USE 

Ms. Shumsky explained that the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the request made 

by the City to meet the need in the Community for temporary housing.  She explained that she 

was asked to craft the means to address the issue of housing.  She explained that she presented 

the community, developers, City Administrator, and the City Attorney with the research and 

there was a lot of discussion on the temporary housing.  She explained that she did research of 

the surrounding areas and has proposed to work within the City's existing Ordinance.  She 

explained that the City's attempt is to include temporary housing under the criteria of the 

temporary use, meaning that all temporary housing would need to comply with the regulations 

for temporary uses.  She added that she also recommended many conditions to the Planning and 

Zoning Commission to consider and the Committee has made some proposed changes.  She said 

that temporary housing could be allowed as a temporary use provided the housing complies with 

all the regulations outlined in the Commercial Zoning District and the Rural Residential Zoning 

District.  She added that those are the two districts that she felt were most compatible because 

hotel/motel type development in commercial districts and allow RV/RV Parks in rural residential 

districts.  She explained that this request is temporary for a specific period of time.  She 

explained that there are provisions, so if there is a problem in a particular area the permit can be 

revoked.  She gave a brief explanation on the following proposed definitions:  

- Pre fabricated structures  

- Self contained recreational vehicles  

- Sanitation plan  

- Utility plan  

- Properly addressed  

- Site Plan  

- 10' set-back between structures  

- Parking spaces  

- Performance Bond   

- Periodic inspections   

 

1:19:11 Mr. McCutcheon explained that the City feels a sense of urgency due to the 

housing crisis in Carlsbad.  

Mr. McCutcheon explained that a considerable amount of input has been gathered from local 

and national developers regarding temporary housing.  He explained that the use of the property 

is a concern and a performance bond is important to return the properties to prior use and the 

area does not become unsightly.  He explained that developers told the City that a fence is 

absolutely essential, to keep trash contained.   

 

Councilman Doporto said that he thinks temporary housing is a good idea for the City.  He 

explained that he has a problem with the Planning and Zoning Commission issuing the 



 

 11 

Temporary Use Permits.  He explained that the permits should come before Council for final 

approval.   

 

Mr. McCutcheon explained that under the existing Ordinance the Planning and Zoning 

Commission has the right to issue temporary use permits.  He added that it is a temporary use 

permit; it is not a permanent use and said that he feels certain that Planning and Zoning will take 

adequate measures to ensure public safety and public good.    

 

Ms. Shumsky added that Council could add the stipulation, no variances allowed for the 

temporary use permits.   

 

1:27:56 Councilor Shirley asked if Council votes yes are they approving staff 

recommendations or the Planning and Zoning Commission recommendations.  

Ms. Shumsky explained that Council can add any changes and vote on those changes.   

 

1:29:12 Discussion regarding Council becoming the final authority on the Temporary 

Use Permits.  

 

1:34:19 Discussion regarding the fencing that is required.  

 

1:35:29 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Doporto and seconded by Councilor Shirley to approve 

ratification of Temporary Housing Regulation, approved by the Carlsbad Planning and Zoning 

Commission as a form of Temporary Use with the conditions that number 15 is completely 

removed and number 17 to read, If all requirements are met, the City Council may issue a 

Temporary Use Permit for Temporary Housing for up to two years. 

 

1:38:14 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Salcido, Shirley, Waters, Aguilar, Doporto;  No - Nunley, 

Whitlock, Doss; Absent - None; The motion carried. 

 

1:38:59 9.        CONSIDER REQUEST TO RESCIND RESOLUTION NO. 2013-43, 

A RESOLUTION REQUIRING THE REMOVAL OF THE BUILDINGS AND DEBRIS 

AT 4505 REDBUD - OWNERS: TERESA GALINDO, JAMES ROBERTS C/O 

CAMERON CLARK  

Ms. Riordan explained that the property is a mobile home in a mobile home subdivision.  She 

explained that she received a response from Teresa Galindo explaining that she did not receive 

the notice till after the Council meeting.  She said that Ms. Galindo owns both the land and the 

mobile home and would like an opportunity to repair the property.  She explained that the mobile 

home has been in poor shape since 2007 and the interior walls and floor have water damage.    

Mr. West, Code Enforcement Officers, explained that there is extensive water damage to the 

ceiling and floors.  He explained that the wiring has been removed from the walls and ceilings.  

He added that this is a very old mobile home and will not be able to be repaired according to the 

State manufactured home requirements.   

 

1:42:45 Mayor Janway asked if a representative for the property was present.  



 

 12 

Ms. Alanis explained that she is present on behalf of Teresa Galindo.  She explained that she 

feels the mobile home is repairable.  She explained that the frame is good, they will need to 

completely gut the mobile home, put in new insulation, and new wiring.  She added that the 

mobile home has a foundation and she is sure that it can be repaired and would like the 

opportunity to do so.   

 

Councilor Aguilar asked how long it would take to repair the home.  Ms. Alanis said that the 

work could be complete by January or February of 2014.     

 

Mr. Cass, Building Inspector, explained that manufactured homes very seldom allow 

homeowners permits to do the repair work.  He explained that a State licensed contractor will be 

needed to work on the home.   

 

1:46:30 Ms. Riordan explained that the Resolution was approved at a previous 

Council meeting, giving the owners 10 days to begin and complete the demolition and clean 

up within 30 days.  

 

1:47:38 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Doss and seconded by Councilor Nunley to deny the request 

to rescind Resolution No. 2013-45, a Resolution requiring the removal of the buildings and 

debris at 4505 Redbud - Owners:  Teresa Galindo, James Roberts c/o Cameron Clark 

 

1:47:45 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Whitlock, Doss;  No - Salcido, Shirley, Aguilar, 

Doporto;  Absent - Waters; The motion was denied. 

 

1:48:16 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Shirley and seconded by Councilor Aguilar to allow an 

additional 30 days to rehear the matter regarding the request to rescind Resolution requiring the 

removal of the buildings and debris at 4505 Redbud - Owners: Teresa Galindo, James Roberts 

c/o Cameron Clark 

 

1:49:02 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Salcido, Shirley, Aguilar, Doporto;  No - Nunley, Whitlock, 

Doss; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

1:50:17 10.        CONSIDER REQUEST TO RESCIND RESOLUTION NO. 2013-44, 

A RESOLUTION REQUIRING THE REMOVAL OF THE BUILDINGS AND DEBRIS 

AT 1714 CURRY ROAD - OWNER: BRIGIDO SALDANA   

Ms. Riordan explained that this is a large property with a home that is in very poor condition.  

She explained that the structure is wood and falling apart.  She said that the building inspector 

said the home is not repairable.  She explained that she received a letter from the owner Mr. 

Brigido Saldana requesting additional time to come up with a plan to clean up the property.  She 

explained that code enforcement requested that the property be cleaned in 2012 and the property 

was not thoroughly cleaned. 

 



 

 13 

1:54:52 Ms. Angela Campos, a representative of the property, explained that she 

realizes the condition of the home and property and intends to demolish the property.  

Ms. Campos explained that she is before Council requesting additional time to demolish and 

clean up the property.  She explained that an effort has been made to clean the property.     

 

Councilor Doporto asked if there are any future plans for the property.  Ms. Campos explained 

that the land is divided among the family and there is interest to build in the future. 

 

1:59:19 Councilor Shirley asked Ms. Campos how much time is needed to clean the 

property and remove the structures.  

Ms. Campos explained that she has some contractors scheduled to come out to give a bid to 

demolish the property.  Councilor Shirley asked if Ms. Campos would have a definite direction 

in 30 days.  Ms. Campos said yes, she would have the bids complete.   

 

Mr. McCutcheon asked Ms. Campos if she is aware that if the City cleans up the property the 

cost of the clean up will attach to the land.  Ms. Campos said that she is aware if the City cleans 

up the property a lien will be placed on the property.  

 

2:01:25 Ms. Jeanne Thompson explained that she lives across the street from the 

property and added that the property is in horrible shape.  

Ms. Thompson said that the home has been vacant and untaken care of for over 15 years.  She 

said that she spoke with Epi Saldana a few years ago regarding the condition of the home and he 

said he did not live their and she could not make him do anything.  She explained that the 

condition of the property affects the property value of her home and is a safety issue.  She 

explained that Mr. West, Code Enforcement, has been working on the property for over 18 

months and she is requesting that Council not rescind the Resolution.     

 

Ms. Campos said that when Ms. Thompson spoke with Epi Saldana she told him if something 

was not done to the property, she could make things happen because she works for the City.  She 

said that she doesn't think it is right for Ms. Thompson to have such an influence on the Council.      

 

Ms. Riordan explained that this issue has been brought to Council by Code Enforcement with 

no involvement of Ms. Thompson.  She added that she would be very sensitive to Ms. 

Thompson's involvement but as a citizen she is allowed to address the Council and ask for her 

concerns to be considered. 

 

2:05:05 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Doporto and seconded by Councilor Doss to deny the 

request to rescind Resolution No. 2013-44, a Resolution requiring the removal of the buildings 

and debris at 1714 Curry Road - Owner:  Brigido Saldana 

 

2:05:37 Councilor Shirley asked if the motion carries how long will the owners have 

to clean the property and demolish the structures.  

Ms. Riordan said the 30 days will begin tomorrow, October 22, 2013. 

 

 



 

 14 

2:06:05 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto, Doss;  No 

- None; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

2:06:35 11.        CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 2013-51, 

FINDING THE BUILDINGS OR STRUCTURES AT THE PROPERTY COMMONLY 

KNOWN AS 409 NORTHEAST 1
ST

 STREET TO BE RUINED, DAMAGED, AND 

DILAPIDATED AND FINDING THE PREMISES TO BE COVERED WITH RUINS, 

RUBBISH, WRECKAGE, WEEDS, DEBRIS; REQUIRING THE REMOVAL OF THE 

BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, RUINS, RUBBISH, WRECKAGE, WEEDS, DEBRIS 

OWNERS: FELIPE J. & MICAELA GAMEZ  

Ms. Riordan explained that the property has a single-family residence and a detached garage.  

She explained that the structures were inspected by the Mr. Cass, City Building Inspector,  and 

he found a section of the exterior load bearing wall on the rear of the home has fallen away from 

the house.  She added that this damage makes the home dangerous to enter due to the fact that it 

could collapse.   

 

2:08:59 Mayor Janway asked if a representative was present to discuss the property; 

no one appeared.  

 

2:09:16 Councilor Doporto said that he lives in the neighborhood and the property is 

in very poor condition and should be demolished.  

 

2:10:49 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Doporto and seconded by Councilor Nunley to approve 

Resolution No. 2013-51, finding the Buildings or Structures at the Property commonly known as 

409 Northeast 1st Street to be ruined, damaged, and dilapidated and finding the premises to be 

covered with ruins, rubbish, wreckage, weeds, debris; requiring the removal of the buildings, 

structures, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, weeds, debris - Owners: Felipe J. & Micaela Gamez 

 

2:11:04 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto, Doss;  No 

- None; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

2:11:16 12.     CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 2013-52, 

FINDING THE BUILDINGS OR STRUCTURES AT THE PROPERTY COMMONLY 

KNOWN AS 4410 MIMOSA TO BE RUINED, DAMAGED, AND DILAPIDATED AND 

FINDING THE PREMISES TO BE COVERED WITH RUINS, RUBBISH, WRECKAGE, 

WEEDS, DEBRIS; REQUIRING THE REMOVAL OF THE BUILDINGS, 

STRUCTURES, RUINS, RUBBISH, WRECKAGE, WEEDS, DEBRIS – OWNER: 

ALFRED MEDINA 

Ms. Riordan explained that this property is a mobile home in a mobile home subdivision.  She 

explained that the residence is vacant and is not secure from entry.  She explained that an added 

on room is beginning to collapse and the floor seems to be unsafe to walk on.    

 



 

 15 

Mr. Medina explained that the outside of his property looks totally different from the pictures 

shown.  He said that he is requesting an extension to repair the mobile home.  He added that he 

has a lot of experience in home and mobile home repair.  He added that when he purchases a 

home he looks at the foundation and the wood.  He explained that he has the means and the 

ability to repair the mobile home.  He explained that with an additional 90 days he can bring the 

home up to code. 

 

2:18:09 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Whitlock and seconded by Councilor Shirley to table for 90 

days, Resolution No. 2013-52, finding the Buildings or Structures at the property commonly 

known as 4410 Mimosa to be ruined, damaged, and dilapidated and finding the premises to be 

covered with ruins, rubbish, wreckage, weeds, debris; requiring the removal of the buildings, 

structures, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, weeds, debris - owner: Alfred Medina 

 

2:18:20 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto;  No - Nunley, 

Doss; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

2:19:00 13.   COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Councilor Aguilar explained that on October 15, 2013, the first Bridge Committee meeting was 

held.  He explained that three of the Committee members did not attend the meeting.  He said 

that the Committee would like to place as the No. 1 priority on the ICIP for $200,000 for an 

Engineering Study.   

 

Councilor Doporto explained that the Bob Forrest Youth Sports Complex Advisory Board is 

looking into putting synthetic turf onto the fields due to the water and maintenance issues. He 

said that the Board is leaning strongly towards the turf.  He explained that the Board is interested 

in putting turf on two of the fields to see how the maintenance goes and how much is saved on 

water before putting turf on all of the fields.     

 

Councilor Doss asked how the turf is maintained and cleaned.  Mr. John Lowe said that the turf 

comes with a groomer.  He added to install turf to one field the cost is $332,000 and includes sub 

base, drainage, and installation for the playing surface.     

 

Mayor Janway asked that before it comes to Council; please provide as much information as 

possible.  Mr. Lowe said that he has done extensive research and spoken to people who play on 

the turf and people who maintain the turf and they love it and would do the turf again.   

 

Mr. McCutcheon explained that if turf is something that the Board would like Council to 

consider, prepare it the form of an agenda briefing memorandum along with back up 

documentation.  He said that the back up documentation should compare the cost of grass, the 

maintenance of grass, and the cost of the turf's maintenance.   

 

Councilor Aguilar asked what can be done about the heat.  Councilor Doporto said that it does 

get about 10 to 15 degrees hotter and can be felt from the knees down.  He said that you can put 



 

 16 

water on the turf to cool it down.  He said that the plan is to put the turf on two of the little 

league fields to begin and continue from there.    

 

Councilor Shirley thanked the Board of Solid Waste Commissioners.  He said that he heard the 

meeting was outstanding and the Board is working well with the Recycling Board.   

Mr. Jerry Stanley explained that the first meeting was held on October 16, 2013.  He said that 

the Board went through all of the rules and regulations and opens meetings act.  He said that the 

Board also passed a Resolution to re-establish CRAB as a sub-board/sub-committee under the 

Board of Solid Waste Commissioners.     

 

Ms. Jackson-Christopher gave an update on the Arts and Cultural District Designation. 

 

2:30:49 14.   ADJOURN  

 

2:30:50 Motion  

The motion was made by Councilor Shirley and seconded by Councilor  Doporto to adjourn 

 

2:30:53 Vote  

The vote was as follows:  Yes - Nunley, Salcido, Shirley, Whitlock, Aguilar, Doporto, Doss;  No 

- None; Absent - Waters; The motion carried. 

 

2:31:22 There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 8:37 p.m. 

 

 

 

      

       ______/s/Dale Janway________________ 

             Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

______/s/Annette Barrick___________ 

  City Clerk  


